
 

1 
 

 
Deerfield Beach Community Redevelopment Agency 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

Tuesday, August 28, 2012, 6:30 P.M. 
City Commission Chambers, Deerfield Beach City Hall 

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Noland at 6:30 p.m. on the above date in the 
City Commission Chambers, City Hall. 
 

 
ROLL CALL: 

Present:  Mr. Joseph Miller  
Mr. Martin Popelsky   

  Mr. Ben Preston 
  Vice Chair Bill Ganz  

   Chair Peggy Noland 
         
Also Present:  Burgess Hanson, City Manager 

Andrew Maurodis, City Attorney 
   Samantha Gillyard, CMC, Deputy City Clerk 
 
Absent:  None 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

    DIGITAL TIME STAMP: 6:30:33 

August 28, 2012 
 
Motion was made by Mr. Miller and seconded by Mr. Preston to approve the August 28, 
2012 agenda as submitted. 
 
Voice Vote: YEAS: Mr. Miller, Mr. Preston, Mr. Popelsky, Vice Chair Ganz, Chair 
Noland.  NAYS: None. 
 

 
GENERAL ITEMS 

  ITEM 1    DIGITAL TIME STAMP: 6:30:59 
 
CRA Resolution 2012/006 - A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMUNITY 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF DEERFIELD BEACH, 
FLORIDA, APPROVING KMJ MANAGEMENT INC. REQUEST FOR 
COMMERCIAL FAÇADE IMPROVEMENT GRANT FUNDING FOR 1574-1584 
SE 2ND STREET FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $23,400.  
 

Kris Mory, CRA Coordinator, summarized Item 1.  She displayed a photo of the property 
and outlined the location of the business and the six (6) stores included in the façade  



CRA Meeting Minutes       August 28, 2012 
 

2 
 

 
GENERAL ITEMS - CONTINUED  

improvement.  Based on linear footage, the property qualifies for $23,400 and the 
applicant proposes to spend an estimated $47,000 for painting, installing a new unified 
awning, building signage, structural repairs, and upgrading the existing glass to impact 
glass. She said that this is a budgeted expense and fits with the criteria; therefore, upon 
Board’s approval, Staff will negotiate an agreement with the applicant and issue a notice 
to proceed.  Moreover, this project is subject to approval by the Community Appearance 
Board and a permit is needed prior to commencement.   
 
Motion was made by Mr. Miller and seconded by Vice Chair Ganz to approved Item 1, 
adopted CRA Resolution 2012/006. 
 
Voice Vote: YEAS: Mr. Miller, Mr. Popelsky, Mr. Preston, Vice Chair Ganz, and Chair 
Noland.  NAYS: None. 
 
In response to Mr. Popelsky’s question, Ms. Mory replied that the program is based on 
linear feet and if the property owner spends over that amount; they are responsible for 
paying out of pocket; the CRA is under no obligation to expend additional funds. 
 
  ITEM 2     DIGITAL TIME STAMP: 6:34:25 
 

CRA Resolution 2012/007 - A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMUNITY 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF DEERFIELD BEACH, 
FLORIDA, RENEWING THE CONTRACT BETWEEN KING OF PRESSURE, 
INC. AND THE CITY OF DEERFIELD BEACH CRA AND AUTHORIZING THE 
EXPENDITURE OF $16,000.00 TO CLEAN, PRESSURE WASH AND SEAL 
PAVER SIDEWALKS IN THE COVE SHOPPING CENTER. 

 
Kris Mory, CRA Coordinator, outlined Item 2; which she advised that the quoted price of 
$16,000 is a not to exceed price.  She highlighted a photo of the sidewalk illustrating the 
need for pressure cleaning.  Last year, the Board approved a contract with King of 
Pressure for washing throughout the CRA, which contract can be renewed in its 
entirety; however, this is only for the Cove Shopping Center. 
 
Chair Noland said that the sealant is not keeping it as clean as desired and asked if 
there is a way to avoid paying $16,000 every year for this service.  She commented that 
once the sidewalks are pressure cleaned, it removes the sealant.  
 
Ms. Mory agreed that pressure washing does remove the sealant, but a new layer of 
sealant is put back on.  She said that the photo is a worst case scenario and is in a high 
traffic area.  In other areas of the plaza, the sealant does minimize regular dirt and 
debris off the sidewalks.  However, in high traffic areas, there is no sealant that will keep 
it clean.  Ms. Mory said that when there are places with food and outdoor traffic, it would 
require more frequent maintenance. 
 
Chair Noland recommended having the property owners/tenants assist with keeping the 
sidewalks clean, such as washing down the sidewalks.  The City has upgraded the  
 



CRA Meeting Minutes       August 28, 2012 
 

3 
 

 
GENERAL ITEMS - CONTINUED  

property; she suggested that the tenants help take responsibility with keeping the 
property clean.   
 
Ms. Mory said that in December, a letter was sent to each property owner informing 
them that their construction easement was complete and that they were free to maintain 
the sidewalks in front of their business, until the City or CRA performs regular 
maintenance.  Some have and some have not.   
 
Chair Noland said that it should be mandatory to keep it clean. 
 
Ms. Mory said that we do not have the ability to compel them to clean the entire 
sidewalk, because from the outside curb into the sidewalk is City property.  However, 
through Code Enforcement, we can get them to clean their sidewalk, but for the public 
portion, the Board has no standing.  She further advised that some restaurants clean 
once a week with bleach and hard bristle brushes.   
 
Chair Noland asked that another letter be sent encouraging them to clean it. 
 
Mr. Miller suggested that King of Pressure provides cleaning tips to the property 
owners. 
 
MOTION was made by Mr. Preston and seconded by Mr. Miller to approved Item 2, 
adopted CRA Resolution 2012/007. 
 
Voice Vote: YEAS: Mr. Miller, Mr. Popelsky, Mr. Preston, and Chair Noland.  NAYS: 
Vice Chair Ganz. 
 
Ms. Mory said that they would schedule the pressure cleaning for mid September during 
evening hours and on the weekend. 
 
Andrew Maurodis, City Attorney, explained that the contract would be a CRA piggy 
back. 
 

 ITEM 3     DIGITAL TIME STAMP: 6:39:53 
 

CRA Resolution 2012/008 - A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMUNITY 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF DEERFIELD BEACH, 
FLORIDA, ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 BUDGET  

 
Kris Mory, CRA Coordinator, outlined Item 3, the adoption of the FY 12/13 budget.  She 
outlined what occurred during the last meeting; wherein, the Board asked that Option C 
be utilized for bond financing, Cove Gardens Streetscape and expansion of Sullivan 
Park and Cove Maritime Village concept; which two (2) projects are not.  She further 
explained that it will take 3 to 4 months to obtain funding; as the process is underway, 
CRA Attorney will guide the Board through necessary steps for acceptance of funds  
 



CRA Meeting Minutes       August 28, 2012 
 

4 
 

 
GENERAL ITEMS - CONTINUED  

through resolutions.  When the funds are received, the budget will be amended   to 
include those funds.   
 
Andrew Maurodis, City Attorney, said that once those funds are received, the Board will 
be on a tight schedule to finish the projects within a period of time.   
 
Chair Noland said that there was $5,000 for landscaping last year and $5,000 again this 
year.  She asked if that amount would be sufficient for the shopping center’s 
landscaping. 
 
Ms. Mory replied that Staff is in the process of transitioning maintenance of the Cove 
from the CRA to the Parks & Recreation Department.   The $5,000 is a buffer until the 
transition; but advised there are no plans to provide ongoing maintenance funding.   
 
Chair Noland commented on façade funding and asked if the budgeted amount is 
sufficient. 
 
Ms. Mory said that those funds are budgeted in case someone else in the Cove wants 
to participate.  Notwithstanding, there will be significant capital improvement programs 
in the Cove Gardens neighborhood; which investment may spur one of the property 
owners along Hillsboro Boulevard to do improvements.      
 
Chair Noland said that there is no budget for lighting; she commented on the Christmas 
lighting last year in the Cove Shopping Center. 
 
Ms. Mory said that the lighting line item last year was mostly for Ocean Way and the 
turtle lighting, but not holiday lighting.  However, the line item referred to is included in 
Special Events; and the same funding is set aside.  During the event, lighting will be 
powered by generator and Parks and Recreation Staff will manage that.  She further 
stated that the investment required for lighting at the Cove is approximately $14,000 for 
an additional panel and the cost benefit did not look like a wise investment at the time. 
 
Chair Noland asked if it would be more beneficial over the years as the purpose was to 
attract more activities in the Cove and more accommodating as possible.   
 
Ms. Mory said if it is the Board’s desire to have ongoing events for the next 5 years, 
because then it would be a wise investment.  The long term investment would then pay 
off; the bill was about $2,500 last year. 
 
Vice Chair Ganz said he does not have a problem with the Christmas tree lighting 
event. 
 
Chair Noland said that lights were going into the entire plaza instead of just in the front 
where the generator is.  She said she thought there would be festivities throughout the 
holiday season, i.e. a Winter Wonderland.  Unfortunately, this is not the case because 
there is only one (1) generator for one (1) night. 



CRA Meeting Minutes       August 28, 2012 
 

5 
 

 
GENERAL ITEMS - CONTINUED  

Vice Chair Ganz said that he would support it; however, there needs to be more buy in 
from the businesses, such as a CAM.  He said that the property owners expect the City 
to pay the full bill and not do anything, as illustrated in the pressure washing.  He said 
that he agrees with a Winter Wonderland, but would like the businesses to participate 
as they will benefit.   
 
Chair Noland inquired how the City could receive contributions from the owners. 
 
Andrew Maurodis, CRA Attorney, advised by doing an assessment, but the 
administrative and legal costs could override the benefit. 
 
Vice Chair Ganz said that at some point, the CRA will end; he expressed concerns with 
dissolving improvements that only last for the life of the CRA, without any buy ins.  He 
suggested that the Board looks at longer term solutions. 
 
Mr. Maurodis said that the CRA is suppose to jumpstart things and get them going; 
which is why it was created with a 30 year life. 
 
Vice Chair Ganz said that it has been a success thus far, but at some point, the apron 
strings must be cut and allow them to come along at a faster pace; and suggested that 
this be considered sooner. 
 
Burgess Hanson, City Manager, said that Staff would start working on that. 
 
Chair Noland commented on how funds are taken away. 
 
Mr. Maurodis said that the Cove is probably the worse example because of the split 
ownership.  Nevertheless, this will not go on forever. 
 
Mr. Miller said that in reference to landscaping maintenance, he thought it was through 
independent contractors, but would later become the City’s responsibility.   
 
Mr. Hanson said no, private contracting would continue.  He said that the CRA cannot 
pay for operational costs, only the City, therefore, it will be turned over to the City. 
 
Mr. Miller said that the budget for façade improvement can be depleted if many people 
get onboard.  He asked if anyone can come aboard once funds are depleted.   
 
Ms. Mory replied that the Board can amend the budget.   
 
Ms. Miler asked about the status of the parking study. 
 
Ms. Mory replied that there is a scope of services for a park and the demand survey in 
the Cove Shopping Center is about 90% complete.  If the Board’s desire is to move 
forward, it can be paid from the Cove Parking Fund and can serve as a basis for any  
 



CRA Meeting Minutes       August 28, 2012 
 

6 
 

 
GENERAL ITEMS - CONTINUED  

type of assessment allocation for the future, as well as a demand study to look for 
additional parking facilities/structures for the plaza. 
 
Vice Chair Ganz commented on the CRA having the ability to pay for special detail in 
the CRA area.  He said that the S-Curve has a lot of different actions and with the 
limitations of the City’s standard coverage; it is justifiable to create a situation that is a 
little safer.  However, he does not want a similar situation to Hallandale Beach; lifeguard 
situation.  If something is going on outside of the CRA area, the police would not be 
able to cross that line if working a special detailed unit.  He provided an example of 
what happened in Hallandale Beach. 
 
Mr. Maurodis said that if there is a need to go outside the CRA, a reporting system can 
be done, wherein you estimate the time and create a reimbursement system. 
 
Vice Chair Ganz expressed concerns regarding legal coverage and common sense 
approach; allowing officers to travel outside the CRA if it became absolutely necessary. 
 
Chair Noland said that it is pitch black over there and agreed with Vice Chair Ganz. 
Additionally, when you come around the S-Curve, there are no lights; other than what is 
on the businesses; and along Ocean Way, it is like that year round because turtle lights 
had to be installed.   
 
Mr. Miller asked if there should be a line added to the budget for security. 
 
Vice Chair Ganz replied that he has asked Ms. Mory to look into whether there is a 
budget for it. 
 
Mr. Miller concurred with Vice Chair Ganz’s concern.  He said that in the last couple of 
weeks, there have been people in the deputy’s car for jumping the fence and entering 
the pier construction site at night.  The deputy advised him that there were at one point 
18 arrests.  He said that it is about $38 per hour for an officer. 
 
In response to Chair Noland’s question, Ms. Mory replied that police detail is $37 per 
hour.  If needed at peak times, 8 hours per night, 24 hours per week equates to $46,176 
per year.  She said that if not needed, the time could be banked, as long as it was 
budgeted, and used for special events.  This would offset some of the costs in the 
district.   
 
Vice Chair Ganz said that he does not want it to offset the special events; but this would 
be an extra detail and should not be used to supplement the security needs for special 
events.  He provided a scenario of how the officers would be used. 
 
In response to Chair Noland’s question, Ms. Mory replied that the hours would have to 
be worked out.  Also, Chief Sudler said that the highest traffic nights are Thursday, 
Friday, and Saturday or Friday, Saturday, and Sunday.   
 



CRA Meeting Minutes       August 28, 2012 
 

7 
 

 
GENERAL ITEMS - CONTINUED  

Mr. Miller suggested two (2) nights, Friday and Saturday. 
 
Chair Noland said that Sunday can be busy. 
 
Mr. Hanson said that the CRA is not only the barrier island, but also the Cove.  
Thursday nights are very popular; he also included Hillsboro Square. 
 
Mr. Miller said that the officer should be with the crowd, on a segway or bicycle. 
 
Ms. Mory said that the CRA is not able to spend money on this activity right now, but 
would have to amend the plan.  Police protection is allowed by State Statute, but the 
Plan does not call for it; therefore, a plan amendment would be required before those 
funds are spent. 
 
Chair Noland said that the lighting was not fully investigated when it was installed.    
She commented on various areas being very busy and the benefit of having additional 
eyes. 
 
Vice Chair Ganz asked if everyone agreed with changing the plan. 
 
Mr. Miller replied that the Homeowner’s Associations are more concerned with safety. 
He asked what percentage of the budget does this entail. 
 
Ms. Mory replied approximately 2%. 
 
Mr. Preston said that input is needed from Police Chief Sudler.  He inquired about the 
present police patrol during that time and how to provide increased presence without 
incurring additional costs.   
 
Chair Noland said that this is one of the main reasons they visited Washington, as 
police presence is already down 5% or 6% throughout the City; and we did not have the 
funds to increase the budget. 
 
Mr. Preston said that the number of officers currently present is unknown and needs to 
be determined. 
 
Mr. Hanson replied that there maybe one (1) officer over there because it is zoned.    
Additionally, he said that this was the most financially feasible way to do this.  Another 
method was to hire deputies as part of the contract, using CRA dollars, but they could 
not respond to other areas; this would create an operational problem.  If they were 
patrolling as BSO deputies and not special detail, the nearest officer responds first.  By 
using regular deputies, you have to hire more deputies to cover the shifts, but by using 
special detail, you can use them as needed.  In the summer months, special detail may 
not be needed on certain nights because of the low attendance.  He said that he would 
talk with Chief Sudler again.   
 



CRA Meeting Minutes       August 28, 2012 
 

8 
 

 
GENERAL ITEMS - CONTINUED  

Chair Noland said for the amount of money it costs and the reduction of officers, 
budgeting it should not be an issue. 
 
Mr. Hanson said that by having police presence, he/she may be able to prevent issues 
without using all the zoned police officers.   
 
Mr. Popelsky asked if the restaurants have private detail. 
 
Mr. Hanson replied yes, some do; and the deputies are only there for that particular 
property and will not assist at other locations. 
 
Mr. Miller said that he is in agreement.  When there is an incident, officers converge 
from various zones and reduce coverage in other areas; thus, this would provide better 
coverage.   
 
Chair Noland said that she does not have a problem amending the budget.  Now that a 
majority of the projects are almost done, and new projects are beginning, the Board is 
now focusing on what else can be done.   
 
Vice Chair Ganz said that we budgeted for the police that we have and having an issue 
forces you to pull from other zones; as there is no additional officers.  He said that his 
Homeowners’ Association would pay to do it from time to time and some businesses 
were willing to pay toward it, but is not sure how it would work.  If the CRA can do it, it is 
worthwhile.  He said that he has had plenty of times that he called for police services in 
his district and they were tied up in other zones.   
 
Mr. Popelsky said that public safety is primary.  He said that during the budget meeting, 
Chief Sudler recommended five (5) additional officers, but is not sure what area they 
would be designated for. 
 
Mr. Hanson replied that those deputies would be used for a tactical deployment team 
and would be throughout the City.  He said that it would be a specialized team for 
burglaries, things of that nature and not really road patrol.   
 
Mr. Popelsky said that if we can expend funds to clean a sidewalk that will get dirty the 
next day, he is in favor of the detail officer.  He also commented on looking into parking 
meters in the Cove.  He said that it may pay for a lot of things discussed. 
 
Mr. Hanson said that the study would pay for the parking, approximately $250,000, but 
is not sure how much analysis went into it.  He said that a Common Area Maintenance 
Program (CAM) can have a better return than pay and display.  He commented on the 
liabilities incurred by pay and display.  Moreover, he said that charging for parking is not 
fair to the residents.  The Board has made it clear that they want more involvement from 
the property owners. 
 
 



CRA Meeting Minutes       August 28, 2012 
 

9 
 

 
GENERAL ITEMS - CONTINUED  

MOTION was made by Mr. Miller and seconded Mr. Preston to approve the 
FY2012/2013 budget.   
 
Vice Chair Ganz said that he had previously suggested having an ambassador who 
would direct people at the beach, providing hands on experience.  He said that it can be 
done at a relatively inexpensive cost.  He outlined various tasks that can be performed.  
Lastly, he suggested that it be specifically for the barrier island. 
 
Chair Noland said that there was a trolley that helped people with information.  
Additionally, she said that people work over at the NE Focal Point and an organization 
subsidizes them.   
 
Vice Chair Ganz suggested interns to keep the costs low. 
 
Continuing, Chair Noland recommended that Ms. Mory speak with Donna DeFronzo, 
Director of Senior Services, for feedback as well as other cities who use interns. 
 
Mr. Popelsky also suggested other avenues, CERT or Historical Society.  He said that 
he is sure many people would volunteer for this. 
 
Chair Noland said that more than one (1) person is needed; as to not exhaust one 
volunteer. 
 
Ms. Mory said that there is an information center that is built into the pier.  She 
explained the setup of the facility, video screens with information; there could be a 
person there.  The programming is in the works for it now.   
 
Vice Chair Ganz suggested having them in different locations, the pier and two (2) other 
locations; the S-Curve. 
 
Mr. Miller said that the City of Delray Beach has something on A1A, on the south side of 
Atlantic and will visit to get more ideas. 
 
Chair Noland asked if you could charge businesses for advertising on the information 
board.     
 
Mr. Maurodis said that he would look into it. 
 
Mr. Hanson commented on a previous discussion of having businesses advertise, but 
there was objection to unwanted businesses desiring to advertise. 
 
Voice vote: YEAS: Mr. Miller, Mr. Popelsky, Mr. Preston, Vice Chair Ganz, and Chair 
Noland.  NAYS: None. 
 
Chair Noland suggested looking into ideas. 
 



CRA Meeting Minutes       August 28, 2012 
 

10 
 

 
BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS 

Chair Noland - Harpoon Louie’s

 

 - Chair Noland said that she attended a meeting for 
the new nautical theme and asked about the fish that was in front of Harpoon Louie’s; it 
is for sale; and will call and obtain an asking price.  She expressed concern with there 
being no art in the City.  She said that she will give the info to Ms. Mory for the next 
meeting. 

 
PUBLIC INPUT 

Façade Improvements

 

 - Pam Militello, 884 SE 19th Avenue, Deerfield Beach, asked that 
when the façade improvements go before the Community Appearance Board that they 
know the Cove’s theme is Key West style.  She said a lot of work went into the details of 
the Cove. 

Chair Noland asked that Kris Mory, CRA Coordinator, make sure the Community 
Appearance Board is aware of this. 
 
Visitor Center

 

 - Barbara Moriarty, 617 Emerald Way West, Deerfield Beach, agreed with 
Vice Chair Ganz’s idea and said that individuals would volunteer to do this to avoid the 
City spending money, as many people are proud of the City.  She suggested having 
workshops, and it is a great way to get the public involved.   

Chamber of Commerce

 

 - Rita Masi, 19th Avenue, Deerfield Beach, said that she worked 
for the Chamber of Commerce as an information specialist and would be happy to 
volunteer. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:31 p.m. 
 

 
   __________________________ 

                  PEGGY NOLAND, CRA CHAIR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
ADA GRAHAM-JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 
 
 


	Tuesday, August 28, 2012, 6:30 P.M.
	The meeting was called to order by Chair Noland at 6:30 p.m. on the above date in the City Commission Chambers, City Hall.
	UROLL CALL:
	Samantha Gillyard, CMC, Deputy City Clerk
	Uapproval of the agenda U    digital time stamp: 6:30:33
	Ugeneral items
	ITEM 1    digital time stamp: 6:30:59
	Ugeneral items - continued
	Ugeneral items - continued
	Ugeneral items - continued
	Ugeneral items - continued
	Ugeneral items - continued
	Ugeneral items - continued
	Ugeneral items - continued
	Ugeneral items - continued



